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SENDAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

; TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Trustees present their annual report together ‘with the financial statements and auditor's’ report of the
charitable company.for'the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The annual repart sefves the purposes
of both a Trustees’ report and a Directors’ report under company law.

The academy trust operates five academies. for pupils aged-5 to 19 serving a wide catchment area in Suffolk,
Norfolk and extending into Cambridgeshire and Essex. It has a pupil capacity.of 501 and had a roll of 520 in the
school census on 18 May 2023. The academy trust's expertise covers a wide range of Special Educational
Needs including Autism, Moderate and Severe Learning Difficulties, Social Emotional .Mental Health and
Communication and Interaction. The academy trust also staff two specialist Units Mulbérry and Peile, in
conjunction with two other Multi Academy Trusts.,

Structure, governance and management

a. Constitution

The academy trust is a charitable company limited by guarantée and an exempt charity:

The charitable company's memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the
‘academy trust.

The Trustees of SENDAT (Special Educational Needs and Disabilities Academy Trust) aré also the Directors of
the charitable. company for the purpose of company (aw,

Details of the Trustees who served during the year; and to the date these financial statements are.approved are
included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page-1.

b. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in
the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased

to be a member.

c. Trustees' indemnities

There were no provisions required for third party indemnity.
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SENDAT
(A company limited.by guarantee).

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR.THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

‘Structure, governance and management (continued)
d..Method of recruitment and 'aﬁpojntni_ent or election’of Trustees

The management of the academy trust is the responsrbllrty of the Trustees who are. appornted under the terms
. of the articles of ‘association. The "Articles ‘state. that ‘there 'shall not be less-than.3, but not subject to -any
maximum.

2). Up to2 Trustees appomted by West Suffolk College

3) Upto2 academy Trustees -

4) Upto2 Staff Trustees proposed by the CEO - the total number of employees of the Trust who are
Trustees shall not exceed one third of the Trust’

Trustees are ‘subject to rétirement-after.a'term’of four years. After the teim they:are eligible for re-election at
the :meeting at’ which. they retire Trustees.aré appointed with reference ito thelr individual skill in order to
marntaln :a'full board representing educatlon health; socral sefvices, business, frnance and ‘the law.-A skrlls,
audit is used to: |dent|fy ‘any. srgmfrcant gaps. The academy trust works with Academy "Ambassadors to. recruit
Trustees with the relevant skill:sets: reqwred by the Board. A Trustee from the Full Trust Board sits.on each
Local ‘Academy Board {"LAB"), so all LABs are:accurately represented:at'Full Béard Meetings and- enhancing
information flow, .

e. Policies adopted for the induction and training of Triistees

The 'Partnership Director 'provides' a framework ‘of robust induction and training - supported by the National
Governance. Assocratlon (NGA,) for all new Trustees. The tralnmg and inductionprovided for new Trustees is
dependent ‘on, their. existing -experiénce. ‘Whereé necessary, induction. will also provide training on charity,
educational, legal and financial matters. 'Trustees are ericouraged to visit eachtprovrsron and ‘'see staff and
students in action, SENDAT (uses Sharepoint ias+a library for, governance: documents and all Trustees are
provrded with copies of polrcres and: procedures as‘requrred They are .given :access to minutes, acoounts
budgets, plans and other documents to inform them for their role as Trustees.-
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SENDAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
‘FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Structure, governance and managerment (contintied)
f. Organisational structure

The .management structure consnsts of five - members and the:articles .of Association:allow for & mininmium of
three Trustees. There is at Ieast one Trustee on each of the school Local Academy Boards.

There ‘are two Trustee committees. Provision Standards. and Attainment (EdUCatlbn and ‘Management) ‘and
Audit and Finance. The Trustees aré responsible for settmg the strategic vision, adoptmg an annual plan and
'budget, monitoring the academytrust by the use of budgets and making major decisions about the direction of
‘the academy trust, capital expenditure and senior staff appomtments The Senior Leadership Team consists of
the CEO, Chief Finance and Operatlons Officer, Partnershlp Director, Safeguarding ‘Lead, Trauma Informed
Lead and HR Manager The previous HR Manager retired in April 2022 and HR expeértise for the year 2022-
'2023 was provided by an mdependent third-party organisation. A pérmanent; appomtment of HR 'Lead was
made during the year. and commencéd 1 September 2023,

The scheme of delegation sets the decision-making structure of the.academy .trust. The Board of Trustees
meets seven times within an academlc year. The Board of Trustees delegates:decision making powers to a
Provision Standards-and ‘Attainment Cornmlttee and-an'Audit and Finance Cominiittéé both of which meet six
times a year. In addntlon Members meet-at'least once a year with-the Chair.of Trustees and with the CEO in

attendance.

Committees of the Full Board have delegated respons:bllltues The followmg comm_lttees have functioned during
the 2022/23 academic year: Members Committee, Audit and Finance Committee (mcorporatlng the Pay
‘Committee) and Provision Standards and ‘Attainment Committee.

The Trust Executive Team controls the academy trust at:an execuitive level implementing the policies laid
down by the Trustees and reporting back to them. Combined with the Trust Leadership Group (TLG), consisting
of -CEO, Partnership Director, CFOO, Executive Heads, Head of Schools Head of Safeguarding and Head of
SEND Sefvices, it meets weekly on a Tuesday through term time and where requured during the summer break.
The CEQ is the Accounting Officer.:

Blended governance meetings continued to be held during 2022-2023. They were recorded and minuted by the
Trust Clerk. All governance documents weré made available to'the Board using Sharepoint. This continues to
be the method for all collaboration in the acadeniy trust. An in person Govemance strategy day is held annually
and during 2022-2023 was held at Trust Head Office, Thurston and West Suffolk College XR ‘Lab in‘April 2022.
Members, Trustees, Heads of Schools are invited to attend the day which is led by the Senior Executive Team.

,g.-Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The academy trust has a Pay Policy that is reviewed.and updated annually. It lays down the policy for the
senior leaders 'and all other members of staff. The academy trust's Pay.committee meets-at the end of July ‘to

consider staff progress to targets and remuneration.

The Pay Committee challenges the' recommendations of the :CEO and review a cross section of .the
performance process and: associated records.and findings. Pay is determined by reviewing market factors
bearing in mind the financial circumstances of the académy trust both in the short and longer term.

Annually, at the beglhhlhg of thé-adtumn term, the Chair of Trustees, assisted by an independent advisor and
other Trustees, assesses the CEO's performance by reviewing past performance and setting :appropriate
targets for the year ahead. They make a recommendation on remuneration of the CEO to the ‘Audit.and
Finance committee and then to the Full Board.
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SENDAT
(A-compaiiy limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES! REPORT(CONTINUED).
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED:31 AUGUST 2023

‘Structure, governance aiid anageent (continued):

s Trade:union, facility time

‘Relevant.union:officials

9

‘Percentage of time: spent on facility time.

PPercentage of tifmie. Number of
' ' : employees

Percentage of pay bill spent on-facility time- £

Total:costof facility time: - .
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SENDAT
(A’company limited by guarantee)

‘TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Structure, governance and management (continued)

i. Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

The academy trust is involved in a number of networks and provides muilti-disciplinary teamwork as a key-
priority,

.At a local level the academy trust:

Works closely with Eastern Education Group 1o eénhance and flirthér develop post 16 offer for all
SENDAT students.

West Suffolk Wheelers have a base on Priory School site.

Cubs and Explorer Scouts run from the schools and embedded i in curriculum at Duke of Lancaster and
Stone Lodge Academy.

Has lettings to community groups at Priory, Duke of Lancaster and Stone Lodge Academy

Runs a holiday club at Stone Lodge Academy and'Duke of Lancaster open to 'SEND students outside of
the academy trust.

Offers.the Duke of Edinburgh Award Scheme’at Priory and Stone Lodge Academy.

Works closely with Suffolk, Norfolk, Essex and’ Cambrldge County Council to support the further
development of provision for young people in East Anglia with a wide range of SEND. .

Works with the Parent Teacher Association at ‘Stone Lodge and Friends of Priory School charitable
organlsatlons to further support and ‘enhance provision for students at the associated academies. .
Works with Trauma Informed Schools' UK to support staff proféssional development and embed a
Trauma'Informed approach across thé whole academy trust

Employs Community. Employment and Engagement Officers to work wrthm the local oommunltles of all
schools establishing good links for alternative provision and work experience for students in Year 9 and

above.

At a Local and Regional level the academy trust:

Works with John Milton Academy Trust and Active Learing Trust providing spécialist staff for small’
SEND provisions supporting young people with Cognition and Leammg Needs within mainstream

settings:

Continues to work closely with Norfolk County Council extending the local offer.

Is involved with moderatlon networks to ensure consrstency of assessment.

Is linked with the Institute of Outdoor Learning, further developing learmng Outside The Classroom for
students with SEND.

Is Chair of the Suffolk SEND Further Education and Learning Network.

Is an active member of the Suffolk Specnal Schools Network, Suffolk Schools Forum'and ngh Needs
Working Group.

Extends offers of support working with colleagues i m mamstream schaoals as part of developing an
Outreach offer

At a National and Regional level the academy trust:

The.CEO sits as a co-opted mempber. of the Regional Directors Board for East of England.

Is committed to the devélopment of Special Academies and Multi-Academy Trusts.
Collaborates with the European Outdoor Education Network.-

Collaborates with the National Network for Specral School Busmess Leaders.

Supports the work and values of WomenEd in breaking down the barriers to women working'in
education.

Collaborates with The Trust Network ‘a DfE funded network committed to good ‘school estates
management.
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SENDAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Structure, governance and management (continued)
|- Engagement with employees (includi'ng disabled persons)

SENDAT maintains a strong conviction that effective communlcatlon is pivotal to fostering successful
collaboration and ensuring a unlfled and supported workforce In alignment with this pnncnple the academy
trust allocates three out of its six professional deveiopment days annually to promote and communicate aspects
of the academy trust development plan, sharing its future vision and ethos with all employees.

Throughout the 2022-2023 period, information and training ‘were disseminated through various channels,
including live virtual events, pre-recorded videos by staff members, online training via a recognvzed educatlon
platform, and a ‘comprehensive academy trust-wide PD Day hosted at Priory School 'in June 2023 with
participation from staff across all five schools. Rigorous feedback mechanisms, such as staff surveys
conducted after each PD Day, facilitate constructive feedback-and reflective practices, informing subsequent
planning efforts.

Tailored training offerings are designed to address the specnflc needs of diverse .education and operational
teams. The academy trust endeavours to facilitate the completion of online courses by provudmg access to [T
Suites on PD Days across all schools. Personal skill and career pathways have been further enhanced during
the year by the appointment of a School Improvement Lead dedicated to Staff Development.

During academy trust PD Days, employees are encouraged to engage with their colleagues across the
academy trust, facilitated by their respective line managers. The academy trust actively supports mobility
between schools, promoting the sharing of best practices and benefiting from inter-school relationships. The
adoption of a Trauma-Informed Approach method of working is a key focus during PD days, integral to
induction and probation frameworks for new employees, and becomes a part of the performance management
cycle.

Over several years, the academy trust has extended an optional weekend trip offer to a residential activity
centre in Wales, providing staff with an opportunity for informal interaction and relationship-building across the
academy trust. This initiative, at a nominal cost to staff, also supports the completion of risk assessments,
familiarisation, and participation in activities aligned with those undertaken by students the following summer.

Continuing efforts to enhance recruitment practices and eliminate unconscious bias, the academy trust actively
supports access to the work environment for all employees, implementing recommendations from workplace
assessments. Career fairs held at all schools further support recruitment -endeavours, promoting the
advantages of working within the academy trust. Internal promotion of vacancies, coupled with external
promotion on local social media sites and national platforms, underscores the academy trust's commitment to
attracting a diverse and talented workforce.

The Equality, Diversity and Inclusion policy, outlines the commitment of the Board of Trustees, Senior and
Middle Leaders to ensuring equal treatment and opportumtles within the SENDAT community. The policy
emphasises not merely treating everyone the same but actively seeking to remove barriers and practices that
may lead to unequal outcomes. Celebrating and valuing the diversity, achievements and strengths of all
members of the SENDAT staff, student and extended community is integral to fostering an inclusive and
supportive environment. SENDAT progressed working with the MTPT Project during the year, rolling out offers
supporting a successful return to the workplace for those on parental leave.
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‘SENDAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE. YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Structure, governance and management (continued)

k. Engagement with suppliers, customers and others'in a business relationship with the academy trust

The successful éxpansion of SENDAT can be attributed, in part,-to the éstablishment:of robust relationships
with suppliers.. Recognising the significance of positive partnerships and timely ‘payments, especially with
smaller suppllers SENDAT places great emphasis on ‘fostering such_associations. - SENDAT :encourages
quotes ‘and services from local suppliers, reducing carbon footprint and ‘promoting positive local commetcial
relationships.

The central finance team at SENDAT comprehends the criticality of adhering to public sector procurement
protocols in thé issuance of purchase.orders for expenditire and diligently tracking remittances for income. To
ensure financial prudence; the Chief Finangcial and Opérations Officer (CFOO) personally authorises all orders
exceeding £1,000.: Furthermore, :a monthly review of aged debtors and creditors is_conducted to.maintain.a
proactive approach to fmanCIal management. Clear Finance Processes are updated and lssued to all staff at
the beginning of each academic  year and are now mcluded on the central SENDAT Employee. Informatlon Hub.

In" alignment’ with public sector principles, $pecifically ‘Openness, Accountablllty and Honesty, SENDAT
conscientiously applies these ‘principles when dealing- with discounts and incentives:offered by suppliers. This
:commitment underscores ‘the ethical and transparent ‘practices ‘inherent in the organisation's -approach to.
supplier relatlonshlps and fmancual transactlons The steadfast adherence to these. principles not only upholds
‘the integrity of. SENDAT's fi nancnal processes but also contributes to the sustained success of the organisation.
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SENDAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Obje'c'tive’s and activities

a. Objects and aims

SENDAT .is dedicated to fostering the success, confidence, and self-worth of ‘all children and young people,
empowering themto take responsibility for shaping their lives. Aligned with the academy trust's Statement ‘of
Intent, SENDAT actively promotes -and works collaboratively to ‘achieve the following objectives for every

‘student:’

Prioritising Student Well-being: Delivering high-quality education by placing paramount consideration
on the 'holistic needs of students, ‘encompassi‘ng their social, emotional, educational, and spiritual
development..

Extending School Capabilities: Developmg thé schools' capacity as an extended institution through the
provision of residential programs and a diverse range of extracurricular offerings.

Broadening Experiential Horizons: Enhancing the spectrum of experiences available to each student,
providing increased opportunltles for personal, social, intellectual, physical, and spmtual development.
Community Engagement: Continuously working to ensure that the academy trust maintains a central
and active role within both local and wider. communities. ] ]
Ensuring Equality. and Inclusion::Committing to equality and inclusion for all,.irrespective of disability
and need, to create an environment where every student feels valued and supported.

Enriching Student lees Pledging to offer every student the SENDAT 20 experiences that will
enhance and enrich their lives, contnbutmg to their overall personal and educational growth.

Qua!lty Specialist Provision: Providing a- continuum of consistent, high-quality specialist and
alternative provnsuon with a focused commitment to achieving the bést possnble student outcomes while
fully supporttng students and their families.

Developmg a Range of Provisions: Providing aTange of alternative provisions appropriate to the
specific needs of young people.

b. Objectives, strategies and activities

The following is a.brief summary of some of the main objectives of the academy trust during the last year on
which it acted. The académy trust is in its eighth year since becoming establlshed in September 2015:

3

Collaboratlve Expansion of SEND Offer: Working with the Suffolk County Council and other
neighbourmg Local Authorities to extend the local SEND offer. Develop the continuum of SEND
provision via opening of specialist units in conjunction with mainstream Trusts. Successfully extended
the Priory School offer in a satellite provision for a group of 20 students with no established education
provision. Began merger discussions with Eastérn Education Group in order to develop an organisation
with SEND as a golden thread.

To continue the enrichment, offer to all students throtgh residential trips, offsite trips and the Duke of
Edmburgh program.

Continue in the successful implementation of the academy trust ethos and Trauma Informed approach
across the academy trust.

Successfully apply Trust Capacity Fund strengthening the Central Team and increasing capacity with
School Improvement Leads focising on Curriculum, Behaviour and Attendance and Staff Development.
Expand the use of the Apprenticeship Levy supporting teaching, Ieamlng and Ieadershlp

Continue with innovative centralised systems and services ensuring quality provision of support for
school staff and student communities.

Provide external assurance to stakeholders using the program of Internal Scrutiny..

Continue with the program of identified Capital improvement including supporting the successful
nomination for Priory School Rebuilding Program.
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SENDAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

‘Objectives and activities (continued)
c. Public benefit

SENDAT Trustees recoghise their charitable responsibilities for the advancement of education as described by
the Charity Commissions statement of Recommended Practice. They have also consideréd public benefit
guidance issued by the Charity'Commission. The Trustees have recorded in this réport the activities carried
out by the academy trust in furtherance of the charitable purpose for the public benefit, In setting our
objectives and planmng our activities the Trustees have carefully corisidered the Charity Commussmn s general

guidance on public benéfit.
Strategic report

Achievements and performance
a. Achievements and performance

This is the eighth year of SENDAT as a Multi Academy Trust. ‘During this year, the acade'rhy trust has
expanded the Priory School offer for an additional 12 students and continued the Aspiré provision for students
with co-occurring Moderate Learning Difficulties and Social Emotional and Mehtal Health needs at a satellite
site in Thurston. The Central Team are now all based from this site.

Theé use of cloud based software packages consistent in all schools enabled a smooth transition for new
students and employees to all SENDAT systems. It also enables consistent reporting to the Board of Trustees

‘and it's committees. The academy trust introduced software for Single Central Record, Entry Systems and
enhanced Cyber Security and Data Protection systems.

An application to the Trust Capacity Fund in summer 2022 has enabled further development of the School
Improvement team and énharced the capacity of the existing central team dunng 2022-2023. SENDAT now
offers a very centralised and extended service to all the academies and provisions, fully supporting staff, the
requirements and complexity of the SEND students and aged buildings. The centralised offer allows quality
assurance, efficiency savings, cross academy trust collaboration and includes:

Leadership and Curriculum support
Financial Services
HR
SEND Services including :
- Annual Reviews
- Admissions
- Therapies
- Careers & Employment Engagement
Safeguarding
Govermnance
Estates and Facilities
Catering
Information Data and Systems
Partnership for schools and organisations ,
School Improvement - Behaviour & Attendance, Curriculum & Assessment and Staff Development

* o o o o o o

. Academy Achievements and Performance

When considering the performance and achievements of the SENDAT academies, it is important to consider
the context of the student profiles shown in the graphic below.” SENDAT schools allocated Tuiition Grant
funding were able to use some of the grant via the use of National Tuition Partners and third party tuition
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SENDAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

services.

SENDAT STUDENT NEEDS

Qie2:20% |
L Lt i\
Student numbers 518 - 550 Sept 2023
| Plus 72 unit places
Av attendance 84% (AP 88%) up 7%
FSM 43%, Pupil Premium 50% !

Attendance Ali Academies

Government data for attendance across the academic year 2022-2023 was 86.9% .in state funded special
schools. The table bélow shows 2022-2023 attendance. at SENDAT Schools with Chalk Hill well above the
national averdage for Altérnative Provision. Although Sunrisé was below the national average, once again, there
was indication of improvement from prior year. | ‘

School Name_____ T Auendance 20222023 2021202
Chalk Hill N e h.7.885% 79

Sic ] 786% §¥  -5.5%

Duke of Lancaster School

Priory School ot -89.6% D 0.8%
Stone Lodge Academy = - nx _ 865% & 20

Sunrise Academy ] S38% A 47%
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SENDAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (continued)

Examination Series 2023

T = 5 = ——

Duke of Lancaster - KS2 National Curriculum Assessments

Ei\gﬂsh -Grs Punc: Spelli‘ng' ‘ English - Reading ' ‘Maths

tedent 1 . A, 135 94 L 15 94 NS
stucent 7 9 85 NS 16 95 NS 16 95 NS
Student 2 3 , 8 8
Student 5 ] . | 8
Stodent 3 35 100 AS 25 101 AS 25 101 AS
Studant § 42 102 AS 33 105 AS 33 105 AS
Student 6 53 108 AS 37 109 AS 37 103 AS
Student 8 30 97 NS 33 106 AS 33 105 AS

Priory. School Exam.Results 2023

GOl s e 7 o e T D e R g Ry L TaIGrand Ty

¥ H s 5 i ,N 1 ftled
Pa u{mﬂ:.;.namme a, Dlscover‘. Entryl 1 En?vz ‘ Entrvs K Explore o Gradel sGudeS > Pass ot”"i"
Angel Hill _
Coliege 8 21 29
€LC and GCSE 31 30 12 3 1 7
Green Pathway 1 6 26 ‘33
Other 4 17 24 15 50 110
Sixth Form 5 21 39 24 4 49 142

' . 4 g ) . oz .. - e’,“;’:’” ‘ot
Grand‘l’otah s . 4 61 92 60 , 19 oo 1 .. 2186 =¥ 301
WE S L - A L . i - s .4, > s e v, Pty -
Sunrise Academy Exam Results 2023

Curriculum . ) : . = - GCSE . -GCSE . i pepiiy < 9rand
Pathway, _ BTECL  BTECZ  Entryl E"_“"}' Entry 3 Gradely Grade2 (AtsAward ASDAN - g0
English 1 2 i a
Maths 2 4 2 2 10
Science 2 2
Humanities 2 2
an _ ' 1 1 2
Home Cooking 3 1 4
Gardening 2 2
Grand Tota) 3 1 I 4 6. 4. 4 12 26
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‘SENDAT
{A company limited by guarantee)

~ TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and pérformanceé (coitinued)

cUrcuidm e e . DidIOTIPASDAN 5?1;1?_!
el ENtIVE NtV ETTUVES|
TNy GHULYRL ‘ .mm ¢ EOUVIS 3B . e
English B , ' ' 5 ; ' 36
Maths i 7 © 13 8 | 7 36
Science 11 10 0 11 2 - 2 36
Humanities I 23 13 3 . 39
Trinity Arts ! ’
Award : 20 . 14 2 36
Desi,gn & ¥ 1 1 ) ] : .
Technology J 3 93 o1
'Hospitality & ] ' .
Catering : | ' S v 3 . 1
IcT . ‘ S . 1% . 6 , 3 6 36
Employabllity ' .11 11 12 ' 2 36
| Personat Social '
‘Development 8 3 u
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SENDAT
(A company limited by, guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT: (CONTINUED)
r_FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategic report (continued)

‘Achievements and performance (continiied)

b. Key performance indicators

The budget is set to:ensure that the objectrves of each sthoo! and:ultimately the Trust Development Plan and
the overarching objectrves of the academy trust can be met. Theé financial performance of the academy trustis
jnged on its ability to deliver in this regard

Benchmarkrng special schools is complex as the provrsrons are so often unique in théir stlident population and
the services they provide. The academy trust uses the DfE Benchmarkrng tools when: consrdenng recruitment
‘and financial modelling and uses key ratlos to report agalnst Staffing costs being the nain expenditure for any
'school is particularly relevant for speclal schools with a high proportion of .support staff

Financial Budget KPIs 2022-23 hudget 2022-23 actual 2023-24 budget
‘Staff Costs % of Reveénue Expenditure. 78% 80% 79%
:Staff Costs % of Revenue Income 78% 79% 79%
‘Average Annual FTE Teaching ! Staff §95 4 93.6 92.5
‘Average Annual FTE Non-Teaching' Staff 163.1 190.3 '198.9
Average Annual FTE 158.5 2838 291.4
IFunded Pupil Numbers 6525 593 593

“The impact of Covid sees continued. hlgh ‘demand for SEND school places natlonally and the academy trust
:and Trustees are acutely aware of the need for prudent financial management and budget planning to ensure’
‘the future siistainability.of. SENDAT~ ‘With the: uncertamty of future funding levels, due to.the Local Authonty
‘review, of High Tariff Needs, ‘the.continuing static naturé of place funding and combmed effect extemal factors'
‘such as hlgh cost of living and unfunded pay awards, the Trustees are aware of the need to’ carefully balance
‘the control of costs whilst maintaining the quality SEND provision that SENDAT pndes itself on.
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‘SENDAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
{FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategic report (continuied)
Achievements and performance (continued).
c..Promoting the success of the company

SENDAT Trustees and Senior!Executive Téam ‘are proactive in long term plans for the;academy trust. The
.academy trust produces a:5_.year budget plan‘and applies consideration:to, future proofing policies to align with
phases‘of growth. ‘The success of SENDAT in the local region was ‘a driver in the merger discussions:and
.contunues to be extemalty vrewed asa strong provrder for SEND regionally.

“Two ;applications: for new free schools were submitted to the DfE -during ‘the year. One for a 90 place
‘Altérnative 'Provision Vocational :Schoo! for ages 14-18 :considering’ pathways . into employment for young
‘people for whom the’ existing Alternative Provision ‘offer does not meet their {learning needs, or who are
'struggling within mainstream:schools with the’ academic curriculum. A ’second application was in respect of a
126 ‘place schoo! for young people aged 4- 16 with, Severe Learning Diffi culties. “The_ vision is for a school
‘where professnonals collaborate from the beginning to develop a hollstlc and fuIIy mtegrated narrative about the
‘child, as well as an all inclusive intervention plan to enable aspiration learning throughout.

iIn’conjunction‘with John Milton"Academy Trust and Active Learhing Trust, ' SENDAT put forward ‘a:successfll
‘nomination for the - MAT Finarice Awards. ‘Feedback from the high-profile panel of expert judges praised the
innovative approach and collaborative nature of the Mulberry and Peile Units.

The Nolan Pnncuples are shared regutarly with Trustees and employees during whole academy trust PD Days,
‘with a presentation by the CEO 6n how thése aré applied to decision making and the outcomes for students..

As part of the. 6'step induction and probation framework, all staff are supplied with access to theéléctronic Staff
Handbook and Employee lnformatlon Hub which mcludes standards of .conduct during the workmg day. Semor_
Leadershlp Teams. at all schools promote the Teachers ‘Standards: apphcable to conduct outside of the school
environment. Trustees sign'a ‘Code of Conduct as part “of the onboardlng process’ which is¢ gunded by the
Partiership Director. Awareness of reputation in the wider community.is paramount and well managed by the
Senior Executive Team in collaboration with the Risk Register and Audit and Finance Committee.

SENDAT works closely with Suffolk’ and Norfolk Local Authontres to.reduce the risk ‘of. fundlng uncertainty. ‘As
such the brand iis well known'and weII regarded. All SENDAT ,provisions are close to ‘of over ‘capacity and the
success of a centralised admlssmn team and diversity of. provision offer means referrals can be looked at with a
more holistic proposal of solution.

d. Going concern’

The Trustees assess whether the use. of gomg concem 1s appropnate |e whether there are any matenal

to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in'respect of.a penod of at Ieast one year
from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements.

Within a period of 12 months from the authorisation of thesé financial statements, thé assets and operations ‘of
the academy trust are expected to be transferred to Suffolk Academies Trust. As-such, the Trustees have:
concluded that the academy trust is not a’‘going:concern and the fmancnal ‘statements have therefore not been
‘prepared on a going concern basis.
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SENDAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategic report (continued)

Financial review
a. Financial position

During the year ended 31st August 2023, total revenue expenditure of £13,579,550 was covered by recurrent
grant funding from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) and the Local Authority (LA), funds
brought forward from last year together with other incoming resources. The excess of income over expenditure
for the year (excluding restricted fixed asset funds and Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) costs) was
£308,926.

Combined with reserves brought forward from 2022-23 of £2.683m this gives a revenue carry forward of
£2.992m. This represents a prudent and necessary level of reserves given the continued uncertainty of future
SEND funding levels, the impact of inflation on the cost of services, resources and utilities, and recent
recurrent unfunded pay awards. Termly payment in arrears for High Needs from the main Local Authority
continues. As this funding represents nearly a third of the annual income, robust reserves are required to cover
the monthly pay bill currently around £900k. SENDAT has worked successfully with the Local Authorities to
ensure timely High Needs Payments fall into the correct financial periods.

The condition of the school buildings also warrants a high level of cash reserves to deal improvements,
remedial works and contribution to CIF applications.

This surplus, combined with the LGPS liability and restricted fixed asset funds gives a total funds carry forward
figure of £26,880,271.

In line with the fixed asset policy, £389,499 was transferred from revenue to the fixed asset fund during 2022-
23. The significant projects relating to this were:

£17.5k Curriculum IT Devices at Duke of Lancaster.

£11k Outdoor Gym Equipment at Duke of Lancaster

£30k Initial roofing works at Priory

£20.6k improvements to windows at Priory Schools

£49.8k Curriculum IT Devices at Priory School

£12.7k Investment in upgrading distribution boards and their access at Priory School
£9.8k Catering equipment upgrade for a new combi oven for the in house Catering Team at Priory
School

£63.9k Curriculum IT Devices at Stone Lodge

£8.5k Hot water upgrade at Stone Lodge

£31.4k Science Lab refurbishment at Sunrise Academy

£21.8k Upgrade of intemal secure doors at Sunrise Academy
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(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

b. Reserves policy

The Trustees aim to .demonstrate prudence. and sound financial planning to cover the unexpected and
unplanned in order to protect the delivery of the academy trust's primary objectlves under unforeseen
‘circumstances. Trustees may also set asidé reserves for investment in future years (€g to improve or expand
facilities or to develop the academy trust itself).

To mitigate the risk of frequent délayed funding from the Local Authority and the risk of significant expense due
to the condmon of the buildings, Trustees conS|der it prudent to maintain a free reserve equivalent to a
minimum of two moniths payroll expenditure with a preference of three moniths.

“To mitigate the risk of future income reduction and to provide a fund:for building development, the Trustees
may providé for further reserves determined on an annual basis. Reserves are détermined with referénce to
‘the in-year and cumulative fi nancial performance of the academy trust, the lndlwdual schools within the
academy trust and an:assessment of the key risks and future investment requirements,

The level of revenue reserves at 31 August 2023 was £2,992m.
c. Material investment policy
As in previous years, the academy trust's financial position 'has not allowed for the development of investments,

Dunng the year 2023-2024 Trustees have agreed to consider an investment policy using an investment
platform portfollo to mitigate risk.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

d. Principal risks and uncertainties

The Board of Trustees has diligently evaluated the- principal risks confronting the academy :trust, with a
‘particular focus on thosé associated with teaching, facnlltues provision and operational facets, encompassing
financial considerations. In collaboration with the.Senior Executive Team, the Trustees have implemented a
‘comprehensive framework for assessmg operational, financial, reputational and compliance risks. This
-evaluation is’ systematically recorded in the Risk Register, a document updated bi-ternly and presented at both
Audit and Risk Committee and Full Board Méetings.

To mitigate potential risks, the Trustees and Senior Executlve Team have instituted various: systems,
‘incorporating operational procedures (e.g:; vetting of new staff and visitors, supervision of schoo! grounds) and
internal financial controls. In instances where significant financial risk pers:sts adequate insurance coverage is
malntamed through the DfE Risk Protectlon Arrangement (RPA) and prudent levels of reserves. Reserves,

sustainability.

The financial landscape for SENDAT is dynamic, marked by evolving risks and uncertainties. Trustees
continually reassess’ these factors, with a keen awareness of the necessity to balance financial prudence:with
the exceptional SEN provision for whlch the academy ‘trust is renowned.

Key risks include unexpected costs, changes in government or Local Authority policies impacting the academy
trust's income. Government initiatives, such as those based on published place. numbers for Special:Schools,
posé potential risks. The transition of Suffolk Local Authority to'a matrix-model for High Needs funding in 2023-
:2024 iintroduces cashflow challenges, although the academy trust is weII-prepared with established payment
dates.

The static nature of SEND base funding at £10,000 per student for the past décade is-a primary financial risk.
Despite increasing costs assocua”ted with. runnmg schools® a"rid su'pportirig students ‘with SEND, no clear plans

The real-term drop in fu'ndmg is_a growing concern, exacerbated by part-funded pay awards to teachers and.
«unfunded awards to support staff. Operatlonally, robust policies and procedures, subject to.regular review, are
adopted uniformly across the academy trust to minimize potential risks. Continuous monitoring and adaptation
of procedures are integral to our risk mitigation strategy.

e. Principal funding

The majority of the academy trust's income is obtained from the Education and Skills: Funding Agency (ESFA)
and the Local Authority (LA) in the form of recurrent grants, based on student numbers, the use of which is
restricted to particular purposes. The restricted grants received from the ESFA and the LA during the year
ended 31 August 2023 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the statement of

financial activities.

The academy trust also receives a small annual grant for building maintenance from - the ESFA and further
capital funding, if successful, with a Condmon Improvement Fund ‘bid. In accordance with the Academiés
Accounts Direction, such grants are shown:in the Statement of Financial Activities as income in the restricted
fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the
‘expected useful life of the assets concerned.

Fundraising

Stone Lodge and Priory School are both supported by Parent and Friends Charities that operate independéntly
from the academy trust. The charitable status of these groups allow them to apply for grants through
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TRUSTEES' REPORT;(CONTINUED)
.FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31'AUGUST 2023

Fundraising (continued).

organisation . such as West Suffolk Communlty Chest and Children in Need Each suppomng charity has it's
own $ystems in place for ‘managing’ funds and the fmanclal records are subject to annual scrutiny. Although the
academy trust is supported by a-number of other local :charities on a regular basis, SENDAT does not: :employ
professional fundraisers to seek funds on its'behalf.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

;AUK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use ] 1 September 2021 |t September 2021 to
idata for the period | to’31 August 2022 -31 August 2022 |
{

Energy. consumption used to calculate emissions. 1.335,067 1,402,453
{(kWh) P _
'[Energy consumption break down (kWh) (optlonal) o o

e gds, 7221»8?2.3‘ 784,962

e eléctricity 464,333, 533,879

. ﬁﬁs'ppn fuel 14791 83,612
Scoge 1 emissions in metnc t—cyr;r;es CO2e e -

. [Gas consumiption 132.91 144.33 :
Owned transport ~ mlm-buses 11.52 } 4.16. (
Total scoge 1 144.42 148.49
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e o
Purchased electricity '108.25 124.47
IScope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e. o
Business travel in employee-owned vehicles 23.84 15.89
Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 1276.52 288.85
[ntensity ratio o
Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.55 -0.61
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting (continued)

= We have followed the 2019 HM Govemment Environmental

Reporting o

‘Guidelines. We have also used the GHG Reporting Protoco! —
Corporate Standard and have used the 2023 UK'Government's
Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

ity measurement

he chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric

onnes CO2e per pupll the recommended ratio for the sector.

ithough metrics appear to have risen, it should be noted that two néw schools
joined the Trust during the reporting pertod

Contmued msta|lat|on of smart meters at Pnory School Site

igned upwnth Energy Sparks and engaged with UKSSN in order to raise
issues around energy savings through'school curriculums

uccessful application for CIF to switch to air source heat pumps at-
unrise, for installation in Easter 2024

[Plans for future periods

[Plans for the academic year 2023-2024 ‘are directly linked with the Trust Development Plan. Trustees are
_focused on the strateglc vision of the acac_ie_rqy trust to expand the offer of specuahst and altematlve prowsuon
and their-families. The Trustees are steadfast in their approach to maintaining the good Ofsted r_atlngs at their
current academies and will continue to build on the work at all schools.

The academy trust will continue to work with Suffolk, Norfolk and neighbouring local ‘authorities ‘to broker
relationships with other mainstream trusts and further expand the -establishment of .Communication ‘and
Learning: Units: The expansion of Priory School at Thurston in November 2022 to accommodate a group of
twelve KS3 students, was extended for a further year in 2023-2024.

Trustees-are also committed to employing reserves to building and condition improvements via sngmf icant
contribution to the Capital Improvement Fund (CIF) | bids won for Stone 'Lodge and Priory School. The rebuild
of Chalk Hill continues to be a focus supported either by winning and expansion CIF bid or a Free School Bid
by the Local Authority. SENDAT awaits updated information for the successful Schools Rebuilding Program
bid for Priory School. Current timeframes are for planning, feasibility and design work to start in Aprit 2027.

Further work towards enhancing the capacity of the central team and School lmprovement Team offer as part
of the Central Services will continue. During 2022-23 SENDAT opened a trading subsudlary to begin an
extended offer of Work Experience placements to other schools as well as its' own students. -Currently
SENDAT Tradlng remains dormant.

Focus on the merger with Suffolk-Academiés Trust will continue with the vision to merge early in the néw 2024-
2025 year.
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Disclosure of information to.auditors

"nsofar:as the Trustees:are aware:

) there is no relevan it information of which the chantable ;companys audltors are‘unaware, and
) that they ought to have tak herisélve
relevant audlt mformatton and to establish that'the aliditors are: aware of that |nformat|on

The Trustees' report mcorporatlng a'strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees ‘as the.
company directors, on 13 December 2023 and sigried on its behalf by

’Mrs S S nowdon
‘Chair
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(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we ackrowledge we have overall tesponsibility for ensuring that SENDAT has an effective and
appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate ‘the risk of failure to.achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have rreviewed ‘and taken account of the guidance in ;DfE's Governance Handbook ‘and
competency framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the .CEO as accountlng officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial'management and
in accordance with the requirements and responsnbllltues aSS|gned to it in the funding agreement between
SENDAT and the Secretary of State for Education. Théy aré also responsible for, reporting to the board of
trustees any material weéaknesses or breéakdowns’in internal control.

Governaiice

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the. Trustees':report-and in the
Statement of trustees' responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 7 times during the year.

Attendance du"'rih_Q the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was'as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mrs S_Snowdon, Chair 7 7
Mr N Kellett 7 7
Mr R Attwell 3 7
Mrs E Pearce 2 3
Mr R Ghatauray 5 7
Mrs S Embser-Kay 7 7
Ms J Baker 4 5

The Trustees continue to be ambitious for the development of SENDAT and its vision to extend the continuum
of services across the Eastern Region. It is evident the SENDAT brand is more well considered in the local
communities and is regarded as responsive and agile in meeting the needs of young people. Trustees continue
to support innovative ways of academy trust expansion and development whilst maintaining the standards at its
current academies. During merger discussions, it has been agreed that SENDAT brand will be retained with
reference to specialist provision.

The Board of Trustees conducts an annual skills audit and regularly evaluates its meetmgs The outcomes of
the evaluations are that Trustees feel well informed and able to contribute to meetings in a. meaningful way.
They feel empowered to ask challenging questions and ensure rigour in the leadership of the academy trust.
The audit identified that the Board of Trustees would benefit from a trusteeé with.HR and legal backgrounds to
énhance the business skills of the majority 6f Board members. The Board had training during the year oncyber
security, GDPR and attended the Chair attended meetings with the Board of Eastern Education Group.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

‘Governance (continued)

The successful Mulberry and Peile prov:suons workmg in: partnershlp with:John Milton Academy Trust (JMAT)
and Actlve Learnlng Trust’ (ALT) mainstream trusts continues to'be an excellent example of .the continuum" of
service. This extended:the local offer by some 45 places in'September, 2021 and an additional 18 places were
offered in September 2023. Governance of the units-is in conjunction,with that of the mainstream trust where
the students are on role.

ThelBoard were mvolved in the contmued development of plans for the appllcatlons of the twofree:schools
during this academuc year. SENDAT was shortllsted and invited to interview for both schools and:awaits the
outcome at point of wrrtmg

The Annual Govérnance’ Strategy Day was held at the XR Lab at West Suffolk College in Apnl 2023 and a
further day was held :at_the Prlory Satelllte Prowsron ln Thurston dunng May 2023, “This day provrdes an
Trust with-Senior L eaders. ThIS year was focused on work around the merger of iSuffolk Academies Trust,
‘governance and’ lleadershlp structures, and the: vision of extending the SENDAT expertise through all
associated current and future provisions..

Dunng the year under review, Trustees continued to evaluate and challenge the data’ they recelve wnth the’ aum
of ensuring they get key-performance information in'the’ optumum way.-They commrssmned audlts via external
providers foriFire’ Risk Assessment Audit and Health and Safety audits of all ‘schools and completed the 'self.
reflective | Local Authorlty Safeguarding Reviews:

The Trusteés have spent considerable time ‘working with both the Héadteacher and the Chief Finance and
Operatuons Off" cer reflnmg the dashboard and format of reports and evaluatlon of flndlngs As a growang

evaluatlon and thns is ongoing as part of the reflectrve practlce and |mpact on workload element to the, polucres

Conflicts of interest

The Trust Governance Professional maintains and up to:date: reglster of interests for all staff and Trustees.
This is revrewed for. amendments at the begmnmg of each sub committee and Full’ Board Trustees meeting.
The central finance team are fully aware of the requirements set out in the Academy. Trust Handbook and have

access to the Pecunlary lnterest reglster The Scheme of Delegatlon sincludes a delegatlon of ‘authority and
segregatlon ‘of duty to allow professional challenge of potential related party transactions.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

The Audit and Finance Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. its purpose is to:

Have oversight of the financial management of the:academy trust and to ensure sound and secure financial
procedures as-agreed in'the Terms of Reference. It usually meets half ’terr'iily This .committée also performs
the roles of .the Audit Committee and the Pay Committee. The committee is focused on the strategic leadership
of the academy trust including finance -and ‘staffing. They set robust targets for the CEO/Headteacher and
Ieadershlp team to implement and report back on. It has a combmed responsrl_blhty for the review of Internal
Scrutiny and Risk Register Management.

Dunng 2022-2023 the SENDAT Audit and Finance committeé:

. .evaluated financial information and monitoring for all academiés and future provusmns including
challenges around ngh Needs fundlng
Approved, CEO Performance and review procedure
Received and reviewed the prior year accounts and penod Management accounts
Reviewed and challenged the financials for the free school applications
Had overview of Premises Management, Health & Safety & Staffing and the impacts on budgets
Reviewed in year statutory submissions'to ESFA
Reviewed and updated the Trust Risk: Reglster in depth ‘at separate sub meetings

- Reviewed and approved extraordlnary pay adjustments and applications to thieshold
Discussed ongoing financial impact of Covid-19, Brexit, the war in Ukraine; as well as updates of
Continuity plans _

. Reviewed the findings of Internal Audit and External Audit processes

. Agreed budgets for the 2023-2024 financial year and forécasts for following two years

Monitored expendittiré of capital projects and approved additional funds for Thurston Refurbishments
Discussed and dgreed proposed pay awards and finance palicies.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Audit and Finance Committee was as follows:

Trustee/Member of SMT Meetings attended Out of a possible

:Mr R Attwell, Chair 5
Mr.R Ghatauray 4
Mr N Kellett- 6
‘Ms J Baker 1
Mr L Chapman 4
‘Mrs S Prickett (Chief Finance & Operations 6
’Offlcer)

‘Mrs A Whatley (Partnership Director)

o oobhooOd

o
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good vaiue in
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the academy trust's use of its resources has provided good value for

money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be

improved, including the use of benchmarking data or by using a framework where appropriate. The accounting

officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

. Priory Residential Ofsted Good

. CIF Roof and Fire Alarm Projects completed at Stone Lodge

. Upgrade of ICT devices at Stone Lodge, Priory School, Duke of Lancaster

. Increased student numbers responding to local authority demand and parental preference at Priory

School and Duke of Lancaster ' _

Successful embedding of Scouting principles in Duke of Lancaster and Stone Lodge Academy

Student progress meets or exceeds expectation in the vast majority of cases

Three weeks of student residential trip to Wales

10 day German Exchange Trip for Priory Schoo! 6th Form Students

Return visit with German Students camping at Priory School

Enhanced work experience opportunities in conjunction with other charities

Support of flexible working for staff ‘

Additional Trauma Informed Diploma offered across the academy trust

Support for employees moving into teaching, NPQH and other funded CPD

Use of MS Teams facilitating cross county meetings and reducing travel expenses

Centralising services across the academy trust and extending the offer to include Information, Data and
Systems

. Extending the School Improvement Teams for Behaviour & Attendance, Curriculum & Assessment and

Staff Development

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal contral is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. it can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in SENDAT for the period 1
September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of
trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by
the Board of Trustees.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The risk and control framework

‘The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial
management reports including the use of ICFP metrics which are reviewed and agreed by the board of
trustees

. regular reviews by the Finance and Audit committee of reports which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expéndituré programmes

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance

. clearly defmed procurement and purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

. regular reviews by the Provision Standards and Attainment committee of student data including
progress, safeguarding and Health and Safety

. identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees has decided to employ Ralda Rogers, RCR ‘Services (UK) Limited, and thé Local
Authority, as internal auditors.

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of intemal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

. the work of the external auditors and reports for Safeguarding, Fire, Health and Safety.

. the school resource management self-assessment tool and SRMA deployment and report

. the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of
internal control by the Provision Standards and Attainment Committee as well as the Audit and Finance
Committee and contributed to a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the

system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on their behalf by:

--------------------------------------------------------------------

Mrs S Snowdon Mr L Chapman
Chair Accounting Officer

Date: 13 December 2023
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STATEMENT. OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As:Accounting ‘Officer of SENDAT, |'have considered my résponsibility to notify‘the acadeniy trust board: of.
trusteés and :thé Edication and: Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)’ ‘of material irregularity, |mpropr|ety and non- .
‘compliance: with teris_and conditions of :all funding, including for. estates saféty and managemerit; under the
funding. agreement. between the 'academy trust and the Secretary of : State for Educatlon ‘As: part of my
¢onsideration | have had due regard to-the requn‘ements of the Academy Trust Handbook : 2022 lncludlng.
responsibilities for estates safety.and management..

I.confirm:that | .and the academytrust Board of Trustees are.able to identify any matérial irregular or improper
use of all funds by the:academyitrust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions ‘of funding
under the academy trust's fundmg agreement and, the Academies’ Flnancnal Handbook 2022.

1 confirm that no instances of material megulanty, |mpropr|ety .or funding non-compliance ‘have been
dlscovered to date. If- -any instances are identified-after the date of this'statement, these will be notified to the
board of Trustees and ESFA..

MrL Chapman
Acoount_mg Officer.

Date: 13 December 2023
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

‘The Trustees (who.are also the. directors of the charitable company for the purposes’ of comipany Iaw) are
‘responsible; for. preparing the Trustees ‘report and the fmancral statements in accordance wrth the Academles.
Accounts: Direction’ pubhshed by the Educatlon and Skms ‘Funding' Agency, “United Kingdom Accounting
‘Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted ‘Accounting Practice).and applicable law and regulations.

.Company law-requires-the Trustees to prepare.financial statements for each financial' year.'Under company
law,.the Trustees miist not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of 'its” mcomlng resources and applrcatron of
-resources, including, its incomeand .expenditure, for that period. In preparing these fmancral statements; the
Trustees are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and thei apply them consistently;

‘. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction

2022 to 2023

. state whether applicable UK Accounting ‘Standards have ‘been foIIowed subject to -any material
departures disclosed and explalned in the financial statements;

. prepare the fmancnal statements on the going concern basis unless itis lnappropnate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and'explain
the charitable company's. transactlons and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the charitable company “and .enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the, Companres
Act 2006. They are also responsrble for safeguardlng the assets of the charrtable company and hence for taking

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and_ operation the charitable company - applies.
financial and other controls, which conform wrth the requrrements both of : propnety and of -good financial
management They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE havé been applied for the

purposes intended.
The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance ‘and integrity « of the corporate and frnancnal mformatlon

included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the Umted Kingdom governing the preparatlon and
drssemmatron of financial statements may drffer from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

Mrs s Snowd R
Chair

Date: 13 December 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT.ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
SENDAT

Opinion

We have audlted the flnanmal statements of SENDAT (the academy trust‘) for the .year ended 31 August 2023»
whlch’compnse ithei Statement of fmanmal actlvmes ‘the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows andthe:
related notes, mcludlng a summary ‘of S|gmf|cant accountmg policies. The financial reporting: -framework that.
has been applled in their preparation is appllcable taw,'United Kingdom 'Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally‘Accepted Accounting Practice), incliding Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Réporting
Standard applicable’in the UK and Republic of Iréland', the Charities SORP. 2019 and the Academies Accounts.
Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by.the Education'and Skl"S Fundmg Agency

In‘our opinion the financial statements:
. give a true:and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs:as.at 31 August 2023,aﬁd:0f: its:
incoming resources-and application of resources, including its income and expéndituré for-the year then

ended;

. ‘have ‘been properly prepared in accordance wuth Unlted ‘Klngdom ’Generally Accepted .Accounting
Practice; and

e  have been prepared in accordance with ‘the: requirements.of the Companiés Act 2006, the Charities
'SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction’ 2022 .t0.2023 issued by the Education ‘and Skills
.Fundlng Agency.

Basis for opinion

‘We conductedi our- audit in accordance with International Standards -on" Auditing :(UK) '(ISAs «(UK)) ‘and
-applicable law. Our.responsibilities under those standards are further. described in’ the’ Auditors' responsubllltles
for the audit of the financial ‘'statéments sectlon of our report. We:are mdependent of the academy trust:in
.accordance with the ethical requirements ! that are relevant to our audit ‘of the financial statements in the United
Klngdom lncludlng the Financial Reporting'Council's- Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our.other ethical
‘responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
‘sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attentlon to .note 1:2 in the financial’ statements, which. explains that the Trustees intend to dissolve
the ‘Trust and therefore .do not consider .it appropnate to adopt the : :going concemn basis of. accountlng in

preparing the financial statements: ‘Accordingly, .the financial statéments have been préparedion a basis other
than going concem as described in hote'1.2. Our opinion is not maodified in respect of this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF.
'SENDAT (CONTINUED)

Other information

‘The- other. information .comprises the mformatlon included m the Annual report other than the ‘financial
‘statements and our-Auditors’ report’ ‘thereon.. The ‘Trustees are: respons1ble for.the other information contained:
.within .the Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements:does not cover the. othér'information .and,

-except to the extent otherwise. explicitly stated in -our report, ‘wé :do not - express any form ‘of assurance
conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other:information-and, in doing ‘so, consrder whether, the
other information is materrally inconsistent with thé financial statementsmr our: knowledge obtamed in the
course of the audit, or otherwisé appears'to be materially misstated.:. If we ldentrfy such matenal mconsustencres
‘or ‘apparent material misstatements, we are.required to determrne whether this gives ‘rise to ‘a material
‘misstatement in the financial statements themselves If, based on ‘the:work we have performed, we conclude
that | there isa matenal mrsstatement of thrs other information, we are requrred to report that fact.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

‘I.r_t__gqr opinion; based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

‘» the'information given'in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
"the financial statements are prepared is consistent with'the financial statements.

. the Trustees report and the Strategic report have.been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to'report by exception

JAn the light .of our: knowledge and' understanding of .the academy trust.and ‘its_environment ‘obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements‘in the Trustees' report including the Strategic

report.

‘We have nothing to report:in: réspect of the following matters in relation:to'which the Companies: At 2006
requires us to report to you if,in our opinion:

. adequate accounting. records have not been kept or returns ‘adequate. for our audrt have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
the fmancral statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns or

. certain dlsclosures of Trustees remuneration specrfred by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanatrons we require for our audit:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
SENDAT (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the academy trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Trustées determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the academy trust or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantée that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered mateérial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Iregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We désign
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed below.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud

The objectives of our audit in respect of fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed
risks of material misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate responses to
. those assessed risks; and to respond appropriately to instances of fraud or suspected fraud identified during the

audit. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both management
and those charged with governance of the academy trust.

Our approach was as follows:

. We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the academy trust
and considered that the most significant are the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023, the
Academy Trust Handbook 2022, the Charities SORP 2019, the Companies Act 2006, the Charities Act
2011, and UK financial reporting standards as issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

. We obtained an understanding of how the academy trust complies with these requirements by
discussions with management and those charged with governance.

. We assessed the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, including the risk of material
misstatement due to fraud and how it might occur, by holding discussions with management and those
charged with governance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
: SENDAT (CONTINUED)

. We inquired of management and those charged with governance as to any known instances of
non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations.

Based on this understanding, we designed specific appropriate audit procedures to identify instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations. This included making enquiries of management and those charged with
governance and obtaining additional corroborative evidence as required.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including
those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This
risk increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.
The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves
intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our résponsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors' report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy
trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

P

Frank Shippam BSc FCA DChA (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

MA Partners Audit LLP

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditors

7 The Close

Norwich

Norfolk

NR1 4DJ

18 December 2023
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SENDAT
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO SENDAT
AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 11 October 2019 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to
2023, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by SENDAT during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have been applied to
the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern
them.

This report is made solely to SENDAT and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our
work has been undertaken so that we might state to SENDAT and ESFA those matters we are required to state
in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than SENDAT and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of SENDAT's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of SENDAT's funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 1 September 2011 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the academy trust's income and expenditure.

Our procedures included, but were not limited to, the following:

. Reviewing the processes for identifying and declaring business interests, related parties and transactions
with connected patrties;

. Reviewing minutes of meetings and making enquiries of Trustees and management;

. Performing an evaluation of the general control environment;
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO SENDAT
AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

. Sample testing of expenditure to ensure the Trust's lines of délegation and procurement policies have
béen adhered to, that employees have not personally benefited from any transaction and that goods and
services have been procured.in an open and transparent manner;

. Sample testing of restrictéd income to'ensure it has been spent as the purpose intended;

. Réviéwing transactions which may not faII within the delegated authonty of the Trust and ensuring any’
such transactlons have been authorised’ and disclosed as necessary;

. Reviewing compliance with Part 8: Schedulé of requiréments (the “musts") of the Academy Trust
Handbook 2022.

Where applicable, this work was integrated with our audit-on the financial statements to the extént evidence
from the conduct of thé audit supports the reguiarity conclusion.

in line with the Framework and guide for external auditors and reporting accountants of academy trusts issued
April 2023, we have not performed any .additional procedures regarding the Trust's compllance with
safeguarding, health and safety and estatés management.

‘Conclusion

In the course of our ‘work, nothing has come to our attention. which suggest in all material respects the
expendlture dusbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament.and the financial transactions do not ‘conform fo the: authorities

which govern them.

t«\,‘si PaAvan qb\u.,uu; LeP

MA Partners Audit LLP
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors

'7 The Close

Norwich

Norfolk

NR14DJ

Date: 18 December 2023
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SENDAT
{A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED .31 AUGUST 2023

, L . Restricted .
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds

2023 2023, 2023 2023

‘Income from:

Donations and capital i _ o .
grants. 3 31,900 o 667,085 698,985 70,379,076
Funding for the

academy trust's. o o
educatiorial operations. & 803,835, 803,835 641,507
Ifvestménits 1276 11,000 11,276 206
‘Charitable activities: 4

Academy trust . o L o
.educational operations’ 102,793 12,680,535 - 12,783,328 9,329,668
Provision of boarding o
activities S 30 - 563,636 563,636 552,314

Total incoine 938,804 13,255,171 667,085 14,861,060 20,902,771

Expenditure on:
Raising funds - 862 S 862 3,559
- Charitable activities: 9
Academy trust - oo a eara i4 B acs
educational operations 71,894 12,943,158 552,209 13,567,261 11,277,954
Provision of boarding. 7 o
activities 30 - 563,636 & 563,636. 552,314
Exceptional item 8 3 - . - 349,559

“Tofal expenditure —_— — —_— —
carried forward 71,894 13,507,656 552,200  141131,750 12,163,386
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

, ~ (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

‘Note

Total expenditure.
brought forward:
Net income/
{expenditure)
Transfers betwéen

funds. 20

[Net movement in
funds before.other
Tecognised
gains/(losses)

‘Othér recognised
gains/(losses):

Agtuarial gains on
defined benefit pension

schemes 27
Pension surplus not ,
recognised 27

Net movement in
funds.

Reconciliation of
funds:

Total funds brought
forward

Net movement in funds
Total funds carried’
forward

Restricted _ o
Unréstiicted  Restricted  fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £
71,894 13,507,656 552,209 14,131,759 12,183,386
866,910 (252,485) 114,876 729,301 8,719,385
- (389,499) 389,499 -
866,910  (641,984) 504,375 729,301 8,719,385
‘ 1,242,000 . 4,242,000 8,116,000
. (1,452,000) . {1,452,000) -
866,910 (851,984) 504,375 519,301 16,835,385
1,368,205 1,609,262 23,383,503 26,360,970 9,525,585
866,910 (851,984) 504,375 " 519,301 16,835,385
2,235,115 757,278 23,887,878 26,880,271 26,360,970

The Statement of financial activities.inclades all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages:41 to 79 form part of these financial statements.
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REGISTERED NUMBER: 07729941

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

Fixed assets’

Tangible assets

Current assets

‘Stocks

Debtors

‘Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling duewithin one
year
Net current assets-

Net assets excluding pension asset

Defined benefit pension scheme asset.

Total net assets

Funds of the'academy trust
Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds.

Restricted income funds

Restricted funds excluding pénsion asset /
liability

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

2023
Note. £
16 23,454,064
23,454,064
17 11,405
18 638,863
4,015,090
4,665,358
19 (1,239,151)
3,426,207
26,880,271
26,880,271
27 .
26,880,271
20 23,887,878
20 757,278
20 24,645,156
20 .
20 24,645,156
20 2,235,115

26,880,271

2022

£

23,188,734

23,188,734
918,629
2,698,954
3,617,583
(739,347)

T 2878236

26,066,970

26,066,970

294,000

26,360,970
23,383,503
1,315,262

24,698,765

294,000

24,992,765
1,368,205

26,360,970
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'BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS'AT 31:AUGUST 2023

"The' firancial statemerits on’ pages 36 679 ‘Weére approved and authonsed Jfor |ssue by the Trustees and ares ‘

Date: 13 December2023

The:notes or Pages 41 16 79 forii, part of these finaricial statements:
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(A cotiipany limited by guaranteé)

SENDAT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS:

FOR'THE YEAR-ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Cash/flows from operatifig activities

Cash flows frominvesting.activities:

‘Change in. cash'and cash-equivalents in the year.

Cashand cash.equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash-and:cash equivalents:atithe:end of the year

The hotes or pages41 to 79 Tarm. patt;of these finaiicial staterists

24,75 4,015,000

: 2023
Néte: £

93 {120,682).

"1:316;136;

3

i2/698,954.

3 698,954

G
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SENDAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1.

Accounting policies

14

1.2

13

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public: benefit entity under FRS102, have
been prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reportmg
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accountmg and Reportlng by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
(FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2023 issued by
ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

SENDAT meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.
Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there aré any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of

.the academy trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect.of

a period of at least one year from the date of auithorisation for issue of the financial statements.

Within a period of 12 months from the authorisation of these financial statements, the assets and
operations of the Company are expected to be transferred to Suffolk Academies Trust. As such, the
Trustees have concluded that the Company ‘is not a going concem and the financial statements
have therefore not been prepared on a going concern basis,

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related c¢onditions are met.
Where entitiement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for
which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and
recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an uniconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund.
Capital grants are recognised when there is éntitlement and are not deferred over the life of the
asset on which-they are expended.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.
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1.

Accounting policies (continued)

13

15

Income (continued)

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, ‘is recognised in the year it is receivable and to ‘the
extent the academy trust has provided the goods or services.,

Donated fixed’ assets‘(eXCluding transfers on conversion or into the academy trustj

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it'is measured -at fair value, unless it is: lmpractlcal to
measure this reliably, in:which case the cost of the item to the donor. should be used. The gain'is
recognised.as 'Income’ from’ Donations and Capital Grants'-and a corresponding amount is included
in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated ovér the useful économic life in accordance
with the academy trust's accounting policies.

Expenditure

Expenditure iS recognised once theré.is a legal orconstructive obligation to -transfer economic
benefit to.a third party; it is probable that.a transfer. of economic benefits will be reqwred in
settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure on raising | funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and includes costs of all fundraising activities events‘and non-charitable trading. .

Charitable activities

These are costs'incurred on the academy trust's educational opeérations, including support costs and
costs télating to the governance of theé dcademy trist ap}ioi‘tidh‘ed to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT:

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitaliséd as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of.
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tanglble fixed assets have been acqulred wnth the ald of- specuf ¢ grants, elther from the

deprecnated over thelr expected useful economlc life. Where there are specmc conditions attached

to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund ‘in:the Statement of-financial activities and carried forward in:the Balance. sheet.

Depreciation on the relevant assets ‘is -charged directly to the restricted fixed asset:fund in the
Statement of financial activities:

‘Deprecnatlon is provided -on all tangible fixed assets other:than freehold land and assets under
‘construction, at rates.calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
.expected useful life,.as follows:
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1. Accounting policies (cdnt_in_ued)
1.5 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Leasehold property - 2% straight line
Léasehold land - 125 years straight line
Plant and equipment - 20% straight line
Fixtures and fittings - 20% straight line
Motor vehicles = 20% straight line
Computer equipment - 33% straight line

Asséts in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not
charged until they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A Tteview for |mpanrment of a fixed asset is carried out if ‘events or changes in circumstances
mdccate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the
carrying -value of fixed assets and. their recoverable amounts are récognised as impairments.
Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities.

1.6 Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on' deposit is included when receivable :and the amount can be measured
rehably by the academy trust; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the
institution with whom the funds are depositéd.

1.7 Opeérating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of financial activities on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

1.8 Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for
absolete and slow-moving stocks.

1.9 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

1.10 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar
account.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1. Accounting policies (continued)
1.1 Liabilities

Lrabnlltles are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as airesult of a-past
event, it is probable that a transfer ‘of economic benefit will be required in settiement, and the.
amount of the settlement can be: estrmated reliably.: Lrabrlrtres are recogniséd at the'amount that the
academy trust: anttcmates it will pay to settle the debt or the .amount it has received-as advanced
payments for the goods or.services it must provide.

1.12 Financial instruments

The academy trust: -only holds basic frnancral instruments as defined ' rn ‘FRS.102;. The financial
assets and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement bases are as follows

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are’basic financial instruments:and are debtiinstruments
measured at; amortlsed cost'as: detailed in note 18! Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due, to ‘the academy trust's: whally : -owned. subsldlary are held at face value iless any
impairment, Cash at‘bank ‘is classified ‘as:a’ basic ﬂnancral instrument and is measured .at face
‘value.

Cash at bank is classified as.a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value..

lmeasured at amortlsed cost as detarled in note 19 Taxatlon and socral secunty are; ‘not mcluded in
the financial mstruments drsclosure defi nition. Deferred income is not ‘deemed to be a fmancral
habrlrty, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obhgatron to delrver services
;rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due.to the academy trust's wholly owned
subsidiary.are held at face value less any impairment..

1.13 Taxation.
The. academy trust is consrdered to pass the tests set out i m Paragraph'1 Schedule 6 of the Finance

Act 2010 and therefore ‘it meets the defrnmon of a charitable : :company -for UK corporatlon tax.
purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter. 3 of the. ‘Corporation Tax Act 2010 or’
‘Section 256 of the Taxatron of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such’income or gains
are applred excluswely to charrtable purposes.
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1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.14 Pensions

The academy trust operates a defined contribution pension scheme and the pension charge
represents the amounts payable by the academy trust to the fund in respect of the year.

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit

schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that theé pension cost
is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The ‘contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method, TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate -equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations -are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus
are the current service costs and the costs of scheme .introductions, benefit changes, settiements
and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses,

1.15 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Designated funds comprise unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the Trustees for
particular purposes. The aim and use of each designated fund is set ot in the notes to the financial

statements.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by
the funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are aflocated to the appropriate fund.
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Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical ‘experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resultmg accountmg
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
‘assumptions that have a significant risk of causing-a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis usmg a variety of assumptions. The
assumptlons used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these ‘assumptions, which are disclosed in note 27, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at
31 Auguist 2023, Any difféerencés between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgement:

In assessing the carrying value of tangible fixed assets the trustees estimate the anticipated useful lives
and residual values of the assets. There have been no significant revisions to these estimations in the
current financial year.

The fair value of land and buildings transferred to the academy trust on conversion were based upon
information from Suffolk County Council. The fair value of land and buildings transferred from another
Trust and transferred from the local authority in the year ended 31 August 2020 were based upon
professional valuations commissioned by the Trust. In the year ended 31 August 2022, the buildings at
Duke of Lancaster academy were transferred at the Norfolk County Council buildings contract value.
The land and buildings at Sunrise academy were transferred at_ their fair value based on a valuation
undertaken by NPS Property Consuitants Limited as at 31 August 2021.
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JIncome from donations:and capital grants

Restricted
‘Unrestricted fixed asset Total. Total
funds, funds funds ‘funds
2023 2023 2023 2022
& £ 3 £

Donations - transferred from local authority on L
«CONVErsion: ‘ - - 7,918,000
Donations-transferréd from other Trust 20,555 = 20,855  .2,015,711

20,555 20555 19,933,711

Donatiofis: C o345 - 11,345 7,928
‘Capital Grants 667,085 667,085 437,437

Subtotal 11,345 667,085 678,430 445,365

Total 2023 31,90 667085 698,985 10,379,076

Total 2022 | 7.928 10371148 10,379,076
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Fuinding for the acaderny trust's charitabile activities.

DfE/ESFA grants

General Antual Grant (GAG)
Other DfE/ESFA grants
Start Up Grant

Rates relief

Pupii Premium.

:PE &Sports Grant

'FSM Supplementary’

Triist Capacity Fund

‘Other DfE:Group grants
Other Governiment.grants.
High Neeéds

Teachers' Pension

Pupil Premiuri

Teachers' Pay.

Health & social care levy

©Other LA funding.

Unrestricted Restricted
funds funds

2023 2023

£ £

- 5,210,000

69,359
280,785
61,797
- (268)

19,301

Total
funds
2023
£

5,210,000

69,359
280,785
61,797
(268)
300066
19,301

Total
funds
2022

4,486,229

337,717

230,956
34,750
719

13,311

~ 5,603,062
. 256,619
. 21,870
. 62,599
30,209,

458,600

< 5941040

5,941,040

5,603,062

256,619
21,870
92,599
30,209

458,600

5,103,682

3,408,250
226,309
32,308
84,192
21,578,

229,248

-~ 6,462,959

6,462,959

4,001,885
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Funding for the academy trust's charitable activities (continued)
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds. funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 _
£ £ £ £

‘Otherincome from the academy trust's
educational operations 102,793 46,584 149,377 119,390

COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)

Catch-iip-and frecovery Premitim . 229952 229,952 64,629

Mass Testing-and vaccination. - - - 37,607
- 229952, 229,952 102,236

COVID-19 ddditional furding (non- ‘

DfE/ESFA)

Other COVID-19 funding - - 2,475
- - - 2:47 5

Total 2023 102,793 12,680,535 12,783,328 9,320,668

Total 2022 92,350 9,237,318 9,329,668

The Trustreceived £229,952 of funding for recovery:premium and this.was spent in full'in the year.
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Income from ofher trading activities

Unrestricted Total Total
funds. funds funds
2023 2023 2022
£ £ £
Hire of facilities. 21,437 21,437 10,861
Itéms sold 1,372 1,372 1,881
Other attivities 780,578 780,578 622,109
Insurancé: ' 448 448 6,656
Total 2023 803835 803,835 641,507
Total 2022 641,507 641,507
Investment income
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total'
funds funds ‘funds funds
2023 - 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
IAvestment income 276. . 276 206
Pension income - 11,000 11,000 -
276 11,000 11,276 206
Total 2022 206 - 206
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Expenditure

Expenditure. on raising
voluntary.income:-

Direct costs
Academy's educational
operations:

Direct costs
‘Support-costs
Boarding activities:
Direct costs
Support costs
Exceptional itéms

Total 2023

Total 2022

Exceptional item

Impairment.of property

Total 2022

Staff Costs

2023

£

8,301,654
2,373,133

311,231
151,024

Premises Other
2023 2023
£ £

- 862

985,738
641,650

452,052
813,034

- 61,286
40,095

Total

. 2023
£

862

9,739,444

372,517
191,119

Total
2022
£

3,559

7,462,446
3,815,508

377,688
174,626
349,559

11,137,042

1,305,181

1,689,536

14,131,759

12,183,386

9,676,071,

1,037,186

1,470,129

funds
2023

£

12,183,386

349,559

349,559

Total

funds
2022
£

349,559
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Analysis of expenditure by activities.

Activities , _ , )
undertaken  Support Total Total
directly ‘costs funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2022

£ E £ £

Educational'operations 9,739,444 3,827,817 13,567,261 11,277,954

Total 2022 7,462,446  3,815508 11,277,954

Analysis of direct.costs

Total Total
funds funds
2023 2022
£ £

8233731 6,361,453
552,209 487,013
Teaching resot 309,823 185,927
Educational professional fees 256,857 144,698
Staff recruitmeit and development 171,554 155878
Educational visits ' 124,709 84,805
Examintion feés: 22,638 19,830
Agency supply staiff 67,923 22,842

9,739,444 7,462,446

Page 52



(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

10.

Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support ¢osts

Staff costs

Maintenance of property and equipment

Rent, rates and utilities
Governance
Catering

-Agency supply staff
‘Technology

Administration
Cleaning

Staff recruitment and development
‘Minibus

Insurance

‘Legal fees

Pénsion finance costs

‘Cycle to work

Analysis of specific expenses

Included within -expenditure are the following transactions:

Unrecoverable debts

Individual items above £5,000
Reason

Total Total
‘funds funds
2023 2022

£ £
2,234,076 2,753,751
'372,240 182,565
343,565 188,014
139,871 134973
176962 120,528
139,057 56,540
125,985 66,827
105,813 39,214
91,307 63,962
35,454 40,320
33,561 17,044
17,625 14,271
12,301 15,900

- 176,000

- 3,599
3,827,817 3,815,508

Not applicable < £5,000
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1.

12,

Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Depreciation of tangible fixed-assets, -~ ——

Operating lease rentals.
Fees paid to auditors for:

- audit
- other services

Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year-were as follows:

Wages and salaries

Social. sécurity costs

Pension'costs

Agency staff costs;

‘Staff.restructuring costs.

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Severance payments

2023
£

80,527

16,700

2022
£

—487,013..

100,504

5,400

2023,

£
8,245,723

760,812
1,913,100

2022
£

6,241,561

2,779,333

10,919,635

206,980
10,427

9,596,689
79,382

11,137,042

2023
£

10,427

-9,676,071

10,427
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i.

Staff (continued)

'b.'Severance payments

Thé ‘academy trust paid 1 severance payments in the year {2022 -none), disclosed in the following

‘bands:
2023 2022
No. No.
£0 - £25,000 1 -

. Special staff severance payments

Included in staff restructuring costs are special severance payments totalling £6,000 (2022: £nil).
Individually these amounted, to one payment of £6,000.

d. Staff numbers

The average number of persons.employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:

2023 2022

No. :No.

Teachers 81 60
Administration and support 241 197
Management 13 23
335 280

e. Higher paid staff

The riumber of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2023 2022

No: No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 7 3
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 2

In theé band £100,001 - £110,000 1 1

f. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the Trustees and the senior
management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer
pension contributions and employer ‘national insurance: contributions) received by key manzgement
personnel for their services to the academy trust was £1,111,060 (2022 - £778 592).

Page 55



SENDAT
(A company limited by duarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

13; Ce;nt.ral services

Financial Services

Procurement

Humai Resources .
‘SEND Sefvices incliding Admissions & Annal Reviews,
Qualuty Assurance:of Third Party Services & Offsite Provision
Therapeutlc Services

Operations, Compliance & Estate Management

Healthy & Saféty

Information Data & Systems: ‘support

Media Commumcatlons

Pro;ects & Fundlng

Govérharice

The academy triist charges for these services-on the following basis:

School. 2023 Percentage. 2022 Percentage
Priory School 14% 5%
Chalk Hilt 6% 6%:;

Stone Lodge Academy 10% 7:5%
Sunrise '5% 5%,

Duke of Lancaster »5% ‘nfa

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

‘Priory School

Chalk Hill

Stone Lodge Academy
-Sunrise

Duke of Lancaster

Total

2023 2022
£ £
642,545 608,129
58,543 57,927
334,696 224,797
68,908 26,289
92,565 -
1,197,257 917,142
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14.

‘Mf L Chapman: ‘Remuneration 110,000 -

Trustees' remuneration‘and expenses

One or “more. Trustees has been pald remuneratlon or has recenved other beneflts from an ;employment

employment. The vatue of Trustees remuneratlon and otheér beneflts was a5 follows:

2023 2022
£ £

_ | , 115,000
Pension contributions paid - 25,000 -
o 30,000

During the year eénded 31 August: 2023 , expenses of £608 (2022 £nil) were reimbursed or paid. dlrectly

to 1 Trustee.

Trustees' and Officers’ insurance,

The. academy frust has: opted intothe Department of Educattons risk protectlon arrangement (RPA) -an
altematuve to msurance where.UK ove_rnment funds cover : Iosses that anse ThlS scheme protects

offlcers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membershlp

Page’57



SENDAT.
(A-company limited by guarantee)

NOTES.TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR'ENDED 31. AUGUST 2023

16.

Tangible fixed assets

Long-term Assets
leasehold under  Plant and . Fixtures and Motor  Computer
‘property construction ‘equipment fittings vehicles' equipiment Total
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
Cost or-valuation N
At1 September 2022! 24,626,191 426,750 117,339 215,528 100,082 '258,830° 25,744,720
Additions 569,730 39,676 23,682 63,878 - 120,573 817,539
At 31 August 2023 25,195,921 466,426 141,021 279,406 100,082 379,403 26,562,259
Depreciation: .
At September2022 2,046,513 102,267 117,728 76,514 ‘212,964 2,555,986
Charge for the year* 450,975 - 6,168 43,668 13,523 37,875 552,209
At 31 Algust 2023, 2,497,488 . 108,435 161,396 90,037 250,833 3,108,195
Net book value
At 31 August 2023 22,698,433 466,426 32,586 118,010 10,045 128,564 23,454,064
Af31 August 2022 22,579,678 426,750 15,072 97,800 23,568 45,866

23,188,734
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16. ‘Tangiblé fixed assets (Gontinued)

Tciuded within iong-teim leasefiold propeity i land withi i riet bisok Vali f £2;538,881 (2022 -
£2,563,503). propert -

17. ‘Stocks

2023 2022

Finished.goods and goods:for. resale. 11,405 -

48, Debtors

Due within one year

Prepayments and accrued jncormie. ?'
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‘Creditors: Amounts falling.due within one:year

Trade credltors

2023
£.
216,736
177,678
218,616
626,121

2022

237,666
1 38,997

177 839!

4,239,151

2023
£.

54,297
453,803
{(54;297)

; .:739;,,527“

9029
£

7,000
54,207
(7,000)

4537803

84,207
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-20..

iStatement of funds:

Unrestricted .
funds:
Designated
fiifids-

Fire alarm and

emergency.
lighting

‘General funds.

General Funds.-
all funds

Total
Unrestricted
funds

15,472,

) : N Transfers
Income. Expenditure infout
£ £ £

. 15,472)

Balance at
:31 Aagust

£

938,804 i(71,894) 45,472

2285415

1,368,205

038804 (71,809

2,235:415
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20.

Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at1 _ Balance at
September _ A Transfers ‘Gains/ 31 August
2022 income ‘Expenditure infout (Losses) 2023
£ £ £ £ , £
Restricted
general funds
General Annual o . o . .
Grant (GAG) 252,460 5,210,000 (5,218,272) (56,018) - 188,170
Pupil Premium - 280,785 (280,785) )
Local Authiority o 5
SEN Funding 1,028,052 5,603,062 (4,805,525) (1,256,481) . 569,108
PE and Sports - _ ey
Grant 34,750 61,797 (96,547) . -
Teachers’ o
Pension and Pay - 349,218 (349,218) : s -
recovery
premium - 229,952 (229,952) - - -
Free School L -
Meal Grant . (268) 268 - -
Other LA L .
funding - 510,679 (510,679) - -
Other - 46,584  (46,584) . - .
Other DfE grants - 83,073 (83,073) - - -
Residential . 563,636 (563,636) - - -
Bursary Funding - 5,587 (5,587) - - -
Trust Capacity - 300,066 (300,066) - - -
Pension reserve 294,000 11,000 (1,018,000) 923,000 (21 0,000) -
757,278

1,609,262 13,255,171 (13,507,656)  (389,499)  (210,000)
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20.

Statement of funds (continued)

'‘Balance at1 ‘ Balance at
:September ‘Transfers Gains/ .31 ‘August
2022 Ingome, Expenditure infout  -(Losses) 2023
£ £ £ £ ' £ £
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Assets inherited .
or transferred 20,316,986 - (421,569) - - 19,895,417
Assets from;DfE
capital of L
revenue grants  '1,100,327 517,085 (48,798) 56,018 . 1,624,632
Assets from.LA
capntal or S T e s =
revenue grants. 629,061 - (39,165) 333,481 I 923,377
Assets from
unrestricted s
funds 25,859 E 1(5,783) : - 20,076
.Assets from
designated - _
funds 352,818 s ‘(7,'362_), s - 345,456
Assets from
‘other capital or o .
irevenue grants 944,569 ‘150,000 (19,732) . 1,074,837
Assets donated 13,883 . (9,800) - . 4,083

23,383,503 667,085  -(552,200) 389,499

23,887,878

Total

Restricted o ) B o .
funds 24,992,765 13,922,256 (14,059,865) - (210,000) 24,645,156
T@tgi,"fqndgv 26,360, 970 14,861, 060 (14,131 759) - (210,000) 26,880,271

The specific purposes for which t'ﬁe‘fuhds'a‘re to be applied are'as follows:
The General Annual Grant (GAG) is for-the normal runining costs of the Trust.

The Pupil Premium income has been .provided by the ESFA to 'help raise the attainment of
d|sadvantaged pupils..

Local Authority SEN Fundlng The Trust receives a S|gn|f|cant proportion. of its funding direct from the
Local Authority in the way of addmonal place and provision funding; High Tariff Needs Fundmg and other
bespoke commissions. The grants are restncted to be expended for the dehvery of free education and to
support the running costs of the Trust.
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20.  Statenierit of fiifids:(contifiugd)

'g‘""nts' are: other grants recelved and expended for the specnflc purpose. for which;the: grants:
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20, ‘Statementof funds (continued)
Comparafive information’in respect of the preceding:year isias follows:

Balance at , .Balance at

1.September Transfers \Gains/ .31 August
12021, dnicomé  Expenditure: Jdnfout  (LoSSES) 2022,

S . £ £ £ £ ' £ £

Unrestricted

funds

Designated

funds

15,472 - - 15472

General funds:

General Finds =
all funds: 661,559 691,174 = - = 1,352,733

Total
Unféstricted s I o
‘funds, 677,031 691,174 - - - 1,368,205
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20.

Statément of funds (continued)

Restricted
general funds

General Annual
Grant (GAG)

-Other

Government
'g'rénts

Pupil Premium
Local Authority
SEN Funding

'PE and Sports’

Grant

Teachers”™
Pension and Pay
COVID-19

recovery

‘premium

Free School
Meal Grant

Other COVID-19.

funding

‘Other Restricted
Funds

Other LA
funding

‘Start up grant
* Other

Other DfE grants
Residential

Bursary Funding
Pension reserve

Balance at Balaiice at
1.September Tranisfers Gains/  31August
2021 Income  Expenditure infout (Losses) 2022
£ ' £ £ £ £
542,007 4,486,229  (4,016,776)  (759,000) . 252,460

- 21,578 (21,578) - - :

- 263,264 (263,264 - -
900,656 3,408,250 (3,147,361)  (133,493) - 1,028,052

- 34,750 - ] - 34,750

- 310,501 (310,501) - -

- 64,629 (64,629) - - -

. 719 (719) - - -

- 40,082 (40,082) - - -

27,676 - (27,676) - - -

- 229,248  (229,248) - - -

27,759 337,717 (365476) - - -
8,120 77,857 (85,977) - - -

: 13,311 (13,311) - - -

15,762 552,314  (552,314) (15,762) - -
6,902 - (6,902) - - ;
(6,380,000) - {2,201,000) 759,000 8,116,000 294,000
(4,851,118) 9,840,449 (11,346,814)  (149,255) 8,116,000 1,609,262
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i20.,

Restricted fixed
asset funds
Assets
pirchased from
Local Authority
SEN Funding

Assets
Transferred on
Conversion
Assels
Purchased from
GAG
.Assets
Purchased from
Unrestricted.
Funds

Assets
‘Purchased from
‘Othier Restricted.
IFunding
‘Other Capital™
.Grants
iDeveloped
Formula Capital
‘Local Authority.
Capital Grant
‘Condition
Improvement
Fond
Heaithy Pupil
Capital Fund
‘Asséts .
transferred from
'Other Trust
Assets
purchased from
Designated
Funds

DfE donated.
devices.

‘Balance al
1 September.
2021

£

399,621

6,011,113

287,378

31,642

7411
673,160
53,189

129,214

419,618.

123,897

5,097,041

360,198

23,683

Income
pe

103,433

2,015,711

Exipénditure
£

(18,111)
(475,903)

{(20,910)
(5:783)

(12,016)

(8,493)

(6,557)

( 21749)

(8,902)

(2,811)

(743,405

(7,380)

(9,800)

Transfers
infout
£

12,216

169,526

.Gains/’

(Losses)

£

Balance at
31 August.
2022

£

381,510
5,535:210

266,468

25859

35,395
768,100
68,848

126,465

580,242

121,086

6,969,349

13,883
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Statement of funds (continued)

~ Balance at  Balance:at
‘1 September ) - Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2021 Income  Expenditure infout (Losses) 2022

£ £ £ £ £ £

Assets donated

by Local o N :
Authority - 7,918,000 (105,573) - 7,812,427
DOL chargers

and sensory _

room equipment: - - '(4,833) 36,245 - 31,412

Developed

Formula Capital ]

2021122, 42,507 37,770 - (12,216) - 68,061

‘Condition

‘Improvement i e e . e

Fiind 2021/22 - 296,234 - (169,526) . 126,708

Other feventis (2742) 30,330 27,588
Other .- (606) 82,680 - 82,074

13,699,672 10,371,148 (836,572) 149,255 - 23,383,503

Total
Restricted . o . B .
funds 8,848,554 20,211,597 (12,183,386) = 8,116,000 24,992,765

Total funds 9,525,585 20,902,771 (12,183,386) - 87116000 26,360,970

Page 68



SENDAT
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Statement of funds (continued)
Total funds analysis by academy

To align with the parameters outlined in the academy trust's Master Funding Agreement ‘and the
Department for Education's (DfE) expressed commitment to GAG -pooling. and efficient -resource

allocation, the academy trust Board has resolved to commence pooling reserves starting April 2022.

As outlined in the Master Fundmg Agreement 2018v4 [Note 4. 6], which SENDAT adopted in .October
2019,.and in compliance with the guidance of the Academies Trust Handbook (ATH) the: academy trust
is mandated to adhere to the requirements associated with the use of. grants provided by the Secretary
of Staté. Notably, the ATH 2023 [Note 5.65) grants trusts-the flexibility .to -pool GAG funding for trusts
'overseeing multiple academies.

Furthermore, the Master Funding Agreement [Note 4. 10] expllcmy permits the academy trust to allocate
funds from pnvate or public 'sources, other than grants from the Secretary of State, as  déemed
appropriate for the benefit of the academy trust.

Accordingly, no surpluses or'deficits aré attributed to particular schools'but ali are held centrally.

Total cost analysis by academy

Teaching
and

educational Other -Other costs
supportt  support Educational excluding Total Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
Trust 1,077,064 1,119,131 125,845 326,951 2,648,991  .3,225235
Priory School 2,737,922 516,807 282,477 528,606 4,065,812 3,259,142
Chalk Hill 449,991 109,547 44,039 53,399 656,976 950,754
‘Stone Lodge 2,313,219 347,852 128,438 143,206 2,932,715 2,760,594
Sunrise 738,511 198,689 244,960 207,531 1,389,691 476,279

Duke of

Lancaster. 1,228,255 267,585 189,894 199,631 1,885,365 674,810
Impairment - . - - - 349,559

Academytrust 8544962 2,559,611 1015653 1459324 13,579,550 11,696,373
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21..

Analysis-of nét asséts between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Unrestricted
funds
2023
£

Tangible fixed assets :
Curent assets 2,236,340
Creditors due:within one.year (1,225)

Restricted

Restricted
‘fixed asset
funds funds

2023 12023

£ £

: 23,454,064
1,995,204, 433814

Total
funds’
2023

£
123,454,064
4,665,358
(1,239,151)

Total 2,235,115

757278 23,887,878

26,880,271

Analysis of fiet assets between funds - prior year

:Unrestricted
funds.

2022,

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets 1,230,832
Creditors due within one:year 137,373
Provisions for liabilities and charges -

£:

Restricied

ifixed assét
‘inds furds’
2022 2022
£ £

-Restricted

s 23,188,734

2054600 332142

(739347)  (137,373)
294,000 =

Total
funds.
2022

£

23,188,734
3,617,583
(739,347)
294,600

total 11,368,205

riovs262 23,383,503

26,360,970

Page 70



SENDAT

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

22;

23.

24.

Reconciliation of net income to nét cash flow from opérating activities

Net income for the year (as per Statement of finangial activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation & anortisation charges

Capital grants from DfE and other capital iricome
Interest receivable;

(Ingrease)/decrease in debtors
Increase/(decrease) in creditors
(Increase)/decrease in. stocks

Defined b'fe,rife,fi,tp.erjs‘ion scheme cost less contribiitions payable
ned benefit pension scheme finance cost
Transferred from. other Trust

Transferred from local authority .on.conversion
Impairment 6f property

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest receivable
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE Group

Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents:

2023 2022
£ £
729,301 8,719,385
552,209 487,013
(667,085)  (437,437)
(27¢) .(206)
250,270 (297,846
499,804 187,581
(11,405) =
95,000 1,326,000
(11,000) 116,000
- (2,015,711)
= (7,918,000)
- 349,559
1,436,818 516,338
2023 2022
£ £
276. 206
(817,539)  (297,057)
696,581 437,437
 (120,682) 140,586
2023 2022
£ £
4,015,090 2,698,954
4,015090 2,698,954
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5. Analysis of changés in:net debt.

At

September
2022.
£

Cash at’bank and in hand 2,698,954

Cash fIGWS
£
4,316,135

A3
August
2023

£

4,015,089

| 2,698,954

26, Capitsl éomimitments

- 4,316,135

2023
£

545,290

© 4,015/089

S

2022
£
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Pension commitments

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension
Scheme England and 'Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is‘managed by Norfolk Pension Fund and Suffolk Pension
Fund. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2019..

Contributions amounting to £213,572 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022 - £174,861)
and are included within creditors.

Teachers® Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory,. contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by

the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for- full-tume teachers in
academies. All teachérs have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is.an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of ‘salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retifement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

‘Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pénsions (Valuations and Employer-Cost.Cap) Directions
2014 publlshed by HM Treasury every 4 years: The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent oh assumptions about the value -of future
costs, design of benefits and many other factors The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried
out as at 31 March 2020. The valuation report was published by the Department for Educatlon on 30
October 2023. The key elements of the valuation-and subsequent consultation are:

. employer contribution rates set at 28.68% -of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)

. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
‘'service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estlmated future
scontributions together with the notional investments held.at the valuation date) of £222,000 million,
.giving a notional past service deficit of £39,800 million

. the SCAPE discount rate, set by HMT, is'used to determine the notional ‘investment retum The
current SCAPE rate is 1.7% above the rate of CPI and is based on the Office for Budget
Respons[blllty s forecast for long-term GDP growth.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2027.
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £868,192 (2022 - £715,312).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.
(https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employer31202311 Of/valuation-result.aspx).

Under the definitions set-out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded muilti-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.
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27.

Pension commitments (continued)
Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defmed benefit pension scheme; with :the assets heéld in separate trustee~
‘administered funds. The total contribution made for the - yearfended 31 August 2023 was £1,169,000
(2022 - £943,000), of which emp employers s‘contriblitions totalled £923,000(2022 = £759, 000) ‘and employees'
.contribiitions totalled £246,000 (2022 - £184,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 20.7
= 23.1 per cent for emp]oyers and 5.5 - 12.5 per cent for employees.

The LGPS obhgataon relates to the employees of the Trust, who were the employees transferred as part'
of the conversion from the maintained schools and new employees who weré eligible to, and did, join the’
.Scheme since that :date. The obllgatlon in respect of employees who ‘transferred -on conversion
rrepresents ‘their cimulativé service at both the predecessor school and the {Trust at the' balan_ce sheet
date.

uParllament has agreed, at the request of the’ Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
-event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by
the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

[Principal actuarial assumptions o

2023 2022
% %
Rate of increase in salaries, Norfolk . 3.65 3.75
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation; Norfolk 295 3.05
‘Discouint rate for scheme liabilities; Noifolk 15,20 4.25
Rate of.increase in salaries, Suffolk -4.00 3.75
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation, Suffolk 3.00 3.05
‘Discourit raté for scheme liabilities, Suffolk 5.20 4.25

The current mortality assumptions include. sufficient allowance -for future .improvements in mortality
rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2023 2022
Years Years
‘Retiring today .
‘Males (Norfolk, Suffolk) 214185 217,219
[Females"(Norfolk, Siiffolk) 241,245 241,243
Retiring in 20 years
‘Males (Norfolk, Suffolk) 220,219 229229
:Females (Norfolk, Suffolk) 25.5,25.5  26.0,26.1
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Pension commitments (continued)

‘Sensitivity analysis

2023 2022
-£000 £000
Discount rate-0.1% 219 239
Salary rate +0.1% 14 14
Pension increase rate +0.1%, 209 227
Share of scheme assets
The-academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:’
At 31 _
August At 31 August
12023 2022
£ £
Equities 6,394,600 6,567,420
Bonds 2,428,300 2,139,260
Property 777,360 970,560
‘Cash 97,740 760
Total market vaiue.of assets 9,698,000 9,698,000
" ‘Thé actual return on schene assets was £114,000 (2022 - £78,000).
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows:
2023 2022
£ £
Current service cost (1,018,000)  (2,085,000)
Interest income 434,000 154,000
Interest cost (423,000)  (270,000)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activitiés: (1,007,000) {2,201,000)
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27.

Pension commitments (continued)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows::

2023 .2022

£ £

At 1 September 9,404,000 15,303,:000
Current service cost 1,018,000 2,085,000
Benefits paid (140,000)  (90,000)
Employee contributions 246,000 184,000
Intérest cost 423,000 270,000
Actuarial gains (1,790,000)  (8,348,000)
At 31 August :9,1/61,600 9,404,000

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2023 2022

£ £

.At 1 September 9,698,000 8,923,000
Interest income 434,000 154,000
Employee contributions 246,000 184,000
Benefits paid (140,000) (90,000)
Actuarial losses (548,000) (232, 000)
Employer contributions 923,000 759,000
At 31 August , 10,613,000 9,698,000

‘The fair value of the pension plan assets at 31 August 2023 .is in excess of the present value. of the

defined benefit obligation at that date. This gives rise to a surplus of £1,452,000.:

The surplus is recognised in the financial statements only to the extent that the Trust can recover that
surplus, éither through : a reduction in future contributions or through -a refund to the Trust.

The Trust is unable to determine that future contributions will be réduced and it is not possible for the

Trust to receive a réfund, as the specific conditions for this have not been met. Therefore, the surplus of
£1,452,000.is not recqgmsed as an asset at 31 August 2023
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:Not lateF thain 4 year
‘Later than.1 year.and notlater than:5 years
‘Later'than‘5 years,

sipgfﬁa:n_’iﬁyie'asé- cominiitimeiits

3433 3%, 976 '

“The following Jeaseé: payménts Hiave been recoghised, &8 ah -eXpense; il the *Statement of financial

2023 2022
2 £

Operating lease rentals 80,527 100,504
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'29:,

Related party transactions

Owung to the nature of the academy trust and ‘the. composition:of the Board of Trustees being:drawn
from local publlc and pnvate sector. organisations, transactions.may take place with organisations in
which the \trustees have an ‘interest. All transactions. involving: stich organisations ‘are’ conducted in
accordance with the requwements of the Academy' Trust Handbook :including notifying’ the- ESFA of all
transactions made on or-after 1 April 2019'and obtaining their approval where required, and'with the
‘academy trust's financial regulatuons and normal procurement procedures relatrng to connected and
related party transactions.

Durmg the period, SENDAT entered into transactions with'West ' Suffolk College, an éntity in which:Mr A
Maltpress,-a trustee; is a governor*and DriN Savvas, a member, is the CEO. West:Suffolk College
provrded .educational -servicés to SENDAT totalling :£3,461 :(2022 -.£2,525) and SENDAT received
income for educational sefvices totalling £22,613 (2022 - £6, 250), of which £22,613 (2022 '£6,250) is in
trade_debtors as’at 31 August 2023. All amounts charged by the Trust were on: ‘the basis of ‘direct cost
plus' mdrrect costs;: with no element:of proflt In entenng finto the transactions:the:academy trist has
complied wuth the requurements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022,

The ‘Friends of Prlory School is a Registered ‘Charity (1116198). ‘The’ charity raises funds for the
Academy to provrde resources’ that would ‘otherwise not be prowded Thellatest avallable fmancnal
information for, the year ended 31 December 2018 showed. that the charity | had gross income of £10,961.
(2017 -.£5, 973) ‘and expenditure of :£7, 907 (2017 £3 701). Durlng the year ended :31.August 2023
donatlons of £1, 540 (2022 - £730) were. recenved from ‘The Friends of Priory School. Mr.L Chapman, a

Dunng the period, SENDAT entered into transactions with The Ashley School Academy: Trust; an entlty
in ‘Which Mr L Chapian, a trustee,; is a Dlrector of Ashley School Trading | lelted (trading as "Oulton
Broad Water Sports Centre") which is a subs1d|ary of The Ashley School Academy Trust. SENDAT
received income for school trips totalllng £Nil.(2022 - £8, 479) and incurred expendlture of £1,430 (2022
- £N//) All amounts charged by the Trust were on the basis of diréct cost plus indirect costs, with no
element of profit..In entering into the transactions the academy trust has complied with the’ requrrements
of the"Academy Trust Handbook 2022.
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30.

Boarding school trading accourit

income

Direct incorie’
Grants
‘Totalinéome
Expenditure
Direct expénditure
Staff costs
Other.diréct-costs:

Total direct expenditure
Other expenditure:

Other staff.costs

Other operational costs.

Total other expenditure

Total expenditure

Surplus from'all sources

.2023
£

563,636°

311,231
61,286

372,517
151,024
40,095

494,119

Boardirig schiool balafices at 1 Septefiiber 2022

Boafding school balaricés at 31 Auiguist 2023

2023
£

563,636,

563,636

2022

552,314

344,224

377,688

137,261
37,365

174626

552,314

552,314

Page 79:



